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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
PREMEDIUM PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of PREMEDIUM
PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive
[ncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2022, and its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows and for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 38 in the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The
Company has incurred a net loss of Rs 664.39 lacs during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and as of that
date has a accumulated loss of Rs 2145.21 lacs and negative net worth of Rs 1144.21 lacs. The
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs 1353.20 lacs. These events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in such note indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as fully
described in the aforesaid note, based on the Letter of financial support from the Holding company and
including management’s assessment regarding sufficient liquidity being available to fund and continuing
the business operations so as to enable it to meet its liabilities as they fall due and carry on its business
without a siguificant curlailment of operations for at least another 12 months, the management has
prepared these Standalone Ind AS financial statements on the going concern basis of 2 '1ccoummaJ I:Jr Lha.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Standalone Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’s responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The going concern matter described under the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which may impact its financial position
in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses -Refer Note 28(b)(ii) to the financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.




iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement

v. The Company has not proposed, declared and paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly
reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable to the Company.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March 2022 has been paid/provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 10" MAY 2022

( SUNNY SINGH )
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP No. 516834

©“°"  ICAI UDIN: 22516834AITIBA9435
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our Report of even date.

I terans of the infunmation and explanations suughit by us and glven by Uie company and the bouuks uf
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full, including quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Physical Verification of Property, Plant and Equipment has been conducted by the management

(©

(d)

(®)

during the year. All the Property, Plant and Equipments of the Company have not been physically
verified by the management during the year but there is a regular phased programme of physical
verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its Property, Plant and Equipments. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and lease
agreements are duly executed in the favour of the lessee) held by the Company. Accordingly, the
paragraphs 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a)Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals

during the year and the coverage and procedure adopted by the management for verification is
appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed during the physical verification of inventory by the
management which could aggregate 10% or more for each class of inventory.

(b) As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working

capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of
accounts of the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(a)

(b)

There are no loans, investment, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 are applicable. Accordingly, the paragraph
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of drugs
and pharmaceuticals, namely manufacturing and trading of drugs and pharmaceutical products
pursuant to the companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, sales tax, service tax, value added tax and cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, as on 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, there are no dues of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, sales tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of
interest to the lenders.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.
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(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates,
or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
the company has not raised loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b)During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, the paragraph
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable the Company.

(a)According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT ~ 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower Complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a)The company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xvi)(a) to 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company with in the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the:Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 361.25 Lakhs during the financial year
covered by our audit and cash losses amounting to Rs. 716.73 Lakhs during the immediately
preceding (Inanclal year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly paragraph 3(xviii) of tie Order is not applicable to the Company.

As referred to in ‘Material uncertainty related to Going concern’ paragraph in our main audit
report and fully described in Note 38 to the financial statements and Note 27 to the financial
statements which includes the financial ratios and ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company’s current
liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs 1353.20 Lacs, the company has obtained the letter of
support from the Holding Company , nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xx)(a) to 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
235N/N500089

A

PLACE: GURUGRAM [ (newypetni) « ( SUNNY SINGH )
DATED: 10t MAY 2022 ol }/ )

PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP No. 516834
~~ 1CAI UDIN: 22516834AITIBA9435




Annexure “B” To the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PREMEDIUM
PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporling was eslablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating cffectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089
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PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 10t MAY 2022

( SUNNY SINGH )
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP No. 516834
ICAI UDIN: 22516834AITIBA9435




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Financial Statement for the year ended
31st March, 2022




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars Note As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 21 68.62 140.02
Right-of-use-Assets 2.2 8.84 102.69
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets 23 0.46 1.42
Financia! assets
i. Investment 3.1 19.71 19.71
ii. Other financial Assets 3.2 14.62 27.38
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 91.10 0.50
Non-current lax assets (Net) 5 6.05 2.25
Other non-current assets 6 - 220.51
Total non-current assets A 209.40 514.48
Current assets
Inventories 7 173.45 1,257.87
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 8 593.60 1,413.97
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 9 75.98 12.09
iii. Bank balances other than (ji) above 10 92.93 68.86
iv. Other financial assets 1 42.95 1.87
Other current assets 6 90.87 24461
Total current assets B 1,069.78 2,999.27
Total Assets C=A+B 1,279.18 3,513.75
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 1,001.00 1,001,00
Other equity 13 (2,145.21) (1.484.88)
Total equity D (1,144.21) (483.88)
Liabilties
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Lease Liabilities - 68.55
Provisions 14 0.41 9.08
Total non-current liabilities E 0.41 77.63
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15 1,075.00 1,944.37
ii. Lease Liabilities 10.20 4433
iii. Trade payables 16
{(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 97.79 208.97
{B) Total Outs_:andlng dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 1.023.57 1,533.67
Small Enterprises
iv. Other Financial Liabilities 16A 197.02 -
Other current liabiliies 17 19.38 184.92
Provisions 14 0.02 3.74
Total current liabilities F 2.422.98 3.920.00
Total liabilities G=E+F 2,423.39 3,997.63
Total equity and liabilities ——— H=D+G 1,273.18 3,513.75
Significant accounting policies TS 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statemerits’ | =/ 2to 40
| # |

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

o

As per our report of even date attached
For SCV & Co. LLP NS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Wumber 000235N / N500089 = Q/ .

¥ Dr. Dilip Birdi Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
/ ; NCRY [Director] [Director]
. ~ NS\

(Sunny Singh) r \ z -1 [DIN : 08134919] [DIN : 00760651}
Pariner 2] | = | M/\, -
Membership No. 516834 3 :_U/ ayank Bhargava

O‘\T- ‘/ [Company Secretary] /
Place : Gurugram e/ [M.No - A-53418] -

Dated: May 10, 2022 Place : Gurugram



Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Income
Revenue from operations 18 4,183.87 5,518.54
Other income 19 45.77 25.13
Total income (1) 4,229.64 5,543.67
Expenses
Purchases of Stock in Trade 2041 3,085.59 4,796.32
Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade 20.2 1,082.65 222.98
Employee benefits expense 21 85.05 595.60
Finance costs 22 124.25 181.69
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 71.24 93.38
Other expenses 24 537.22 479.44
Total expenses n) 4,986.00 6,369.41
Profit/(Loss) before Tax H=(1-1) (756.36) (825.74)
Tax Expense 25
Current Tax - -
Deferred tax (91.97) 133.77
Total Tax Expense (IV) (91.97) 133.77
Profit/{Loss) for the year V=(lll-lv) (664.39) (959.51)
Other Comprehensive Income vi - =
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (refer note 33) 5.43 6.50
b) Income tax relating to these items (1.37) (1.64)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year/period, net of tax 4.06 4.86
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4.06 4.86
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit/(Loss)
and other comprehensive Income for the year) V+Vi {660.33) (954.65)
Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
- Basic 3 (6.64) (9.59)
- Diluted (6.64) (9.59)
Significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2to 40

As per our report of even date attached
For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratiom\Number 000235N / N500089
| =

—

[Director]

(Sunny Singh)
Partner
Membership No. 516834

[DIN : 08134919]

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari

[Director]
[DIN : 00760651]

Place : Gurugram 1
Dated: May 10, 2022 TN

Mayank Bhargava O"/‘//d’

[Company Secretary] -
[M.No - A-53418] :
Place : Gurugram



Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
As At As At
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments:

Deprecialion

Interest Income

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Bad Debts/Balance written off

Gain on derecognition of Right of use Asset

Loss on sale/scrap of Property,Plant and Equipment (Net)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net)
Remeasurement through OCI

Finance Cost

Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :

Changes in trade receivables

Changes in inventories

Changes in other assets & other current assets
Changes in trade payables

Provisions

Other Financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Cash generated from opeations

Income tax paid/(refund)

Net cash generated from operating activites (A)

Cash flow from investing activity
Sale /(Purchase) of Property, Plant & Equipment

Maturity/(Investments) of /in Fixed deposits having original maturity of more than

3 months
Interest received
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activity

Proceeds from short term borrowings

Payment of Lease Liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing activites (C)

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash & cash equivalents as the beginning of the year
Cash & cash equivalents as the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks:

On current accounts

As per our report of even date attached
For SCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Numtier 000235N / N500089 1=\

P . —

/

—
L//J'I'-"‘*
(Sunny Singh)
Partner ¥ P ’é. \
Membership No. 516834 R
Place : Gurugram - ] T/
Dated: May 10, 2022 e £S5

[0oynoa% S

e oD

([ [New Dethi) = |
HCR

(756.36) (825.74)
71.24 93.38
(4.30) (3.91)

323.88 15.63
15.28 -
(12.36) (16.72)
13.83 .
- (0.62)
5.43 6.50
118.58 177.10
(224.78) (554.38)
489.27 17.25
1,084.41 233.96
348.04 (198.86)
(621.29) 180.07
(12.39) (10.44)
197.02 .
(165.54) (18.00)
1,094.74 (350.40)
(3.80) (1.60)
1,090.94 (352.00)
22.58 (47.85)
(24.08) (51.01)
4.30 3.91
2.80 (94.95)
(869.37) 503.09
(41.90) (71.54)
(118.58) (149.15)
(1,029.85) 282.40
63.89 (164.55)
12.09 176.63
75.98 12.09
- 0.41
75.98 11.68
75.98 12.09

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

aN O

Dr. Dilip Birdi Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Director] [Director]
[DIN : 08134919] [DIN : 00760651]

Mayank Bhargava

[Company Secretary]

[M.No - A-53418}
Place : Gurugram

MY



Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity

1) Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lacs
Notes Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2020 12 1,001.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,001.00
Changes in Equity Shares Capital during the Year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,001.00
1) Other equity Rs. in Lacs
Reserves and surplus
Other items of Other
Comprehensive
Notes Retained earnings . Total
Remeasurements of
the net defined
benefit obligation
Balance as at the April 1, 2020 (530.51) 0.28 (530.23)
Profit/(loss) for the year 13 (959.51) (959.51)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - 4.86 4.86
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (1,490.02) 5.14 (1,484.88)
Profit/(loss) for the year 13 (664.39) (664.39)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - 4.06 4.06
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (2,154.41) 9.20 (2,145.21)

As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 000235N / N500089

(Sunny Singh)
Partner
Membership No. 516834

Place : Gurugram =
Dated: May 10, 2022 =l

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

A1

”

/" Dr. Dilip Birdi

[Director]
[DIN : 08134919]

e

yank Bhargava

[Company Secretary]

[M.No - A-53418]
Place : Gurugram

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari

[Director]
[DIN : 00760651]

'l




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note No. 2.1

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lacs
Particulars Leasehold Computers Furniture & Office Plant & Vehicles Total

Improvement Fixtures Eguipments Machinery

At Cost

As at 1st April, 2020 3547 31.98 22.92 36.60 16.67 4.30 147.94
Additions during the year 16.63 12.47 4.40 0.25 13.43 - 47.18
Disposals / Discarded during the year - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021 52.10 44.45 27.32 36.85 30.10 4.30 1956.12
Additions during the year

Disposals / Discarded during the year 24.35 32.77 0.72 29.83 0.01 4.30 91.98
As at 31st March, 2022 27.75 11.68 26.60 7.02 30.09 - 103.14
DEPRECIATION

As at 1st April, 2020 5.00 8.37 1.54 519 0.68 0.44 21.22
Charge for the year 8.54 13.73 2.52 6.96 1.62 0.51 33.88
Disposals / Discarded during the year - - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021 13.54 22.10 4.06 12.15 2.30 0.95 55.10
Charge for the year 9.89 13.18 2.59 6.95 1.91 0.47 34.99
Disposals / Discarded during the year 13.54 24.72 0.17 15.72 - 1.42 55.57
As at 31st March, 2022 9.89 10.56 6.48 3.38 4.21 - 34.52
NET BLOCK
As at 31st March, 2021 38.56 22.35 23.26 24.70 27.80 3.35 140.02
As at 31st March, 2022 17.86 1.12 20.12 3.64 25.88 - 68.62




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial| Statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2022

Note No. 2.2

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Refer Note 30)

Rs. in Lacs
Particulars Right-of-use
assets
As at 1st April, 2020 295.74
Additions during the year -
Deletion/Adjustment during the year 134.49
Depreciation charge during the year 58.56
As at 318t March,2021 102.69
Additions during the year -
Deletion/Adjustment during the year 58.56
Depreciation charge during the year 35.29
As at 31st March,2022 8.84
Note No. 2.3
INTANGIBLES ASSETS Rs. in Lacs
Particulars Computer
Software
At Cost
As at 1st April, 2020 2.39
Additions during the year 068
Disposals / Discarded during the year
As at 31st March, 2021 3.07
Additions during the year -
Disposals / Discarded during the year =
As at 31st March, 2022 3.07
AMORTIZATION
As at 1st April, 2020 0.71
Charge for the year 0.94
Disposals / Discarded during the year -
As at 31st March, 2021 1.65
Change for the year 0.96
Disposals / Discarded during the year -
As at 31st March, 2022 2.61
NET BLOCK
As at 31st March, 2021 1.42

As at 31st March, 2022 0.46




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note
No.

Particulars

As At

31st March, 2022

Rs. in Lacs

As At

31st March, 2021

Rs. in Lacs

3.1

3.2

Non Current Financial Assets

Investment

Unquoted Investments

Investment in Equity Instruments (at cost)
Investment in Subsidiary Company

i) Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria
99,99,900 Equity Shares of Naira 1/- each

(99,99,900 as at March 31,2021)(subscribed but not paid up)

Total

Agaregate amount of unguoted investments and market
value thereof

Aggregate value of unquoted investment
Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits (Unsecured, Considered good)

Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity and
remaining maturity of more than 12 months

Total

19.71

19.71

19.71

19.71

19.71

14.62

19.71

27.38

14.62

27.38




Pr dlum Phar Icals Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Rs. in Lacs
Credit / (Charge)
Note g . As at Credit / {Charge) to Other As at
No. Deferreditaxlassets'(liabilities inirelationitol; 1st April 2020 to Profit or Iosss Comprehensive 31st March, 2021
Income
4 Deferred Tax Assets / (Llabllitles) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities recognised in statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
Property, plant and equipment
(including intangible assets) (76.23) 49 46 - (26.77)
Employee benefits 5.86 (1.00) {164) 322
Unamortised preliminary expense 0.20 (0.07) - 0.13
Lease Liability 76.31 {47.90) B 28.41
Fair Value Adjustments 0.21) (0.08) - (0.29)
Unabsorbed Loss 127.79 (127.79) - -
Others 2.19 {6.39) - (420}
135.91 {133.77) {1.64) 0.50
Rs. in Lacs
Credit / {Charge)
Note O, . As at Credit / (Charge) to Other As at
No. DetEred (xS IiSbiues)) ATEIStonlor 1st April, 2021 to Profit or loss Comprehensive 31st March, 2022
Income
4  Deferred Tax Assets / (Llabilitles) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities recognised in statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
Property, plant and equipment
{including intangible assets) {26.77) 3379 - 7.02
Employee benefits 322 (1.75) {1.37) 0.10
Unamortised preliminary expense 013 (0.06) - 0.07
Lease Liability 28 41 (25.84) - 257
Fair Value Adjustments (0.29) 012 {017)
Unabsorbed Loss* - - e
Others (4.20) 85.71 - 81.51
0.50 91.97 (1.37) 91.10

* In the absence of virtual certainity of future available taxable profit to set off unabsorbed loss, deferred tax assets on account of unabsorbed loss available

as per Income Tax provisions has not been recognised.

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they ae governed by the same taxation laws,




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note  Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
5 Income tax assets
Non Current
TDS Recoverable 6.05 2.25
Total 6.05 2.25
Note  Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
6 Other Assets
Non-Current
Capital Advances - Considered good - 220.30
Capital Advances - Credit Impaired 220.30 =
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (220.30) =
- 220.30
Prepaid Expenses (Unsecured, Considered good) - 0.21
Total
- 220.51
Current
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances Recoverable* 51.69 42.33
Balance with statutory/government authorities 38.68 196.84
Prepaid Expenses 0.50 5.44
90.87 244.61

*Includes Rs.1.68 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 1.68 lacs) recoverable from Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss in respect of amount capital advances during the year was as follows:

Allowance for expected credit loss

As At 31st March, 2022

As At 31st March, 2021

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Opening balance = =
Expected credit loss created /(reversed) 220.30 -
220.30 £

Closing balance




¥ramedium Pharmaceuticsis Frivaia Limeed

Notes lo Financlal Slatements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Hota Particutars As A1 As At
No. 31st March, 2022 318t Mareh, 2024
Rs. In Lacs Ra. lnLacs
7 Inventories
(Valued at iower of cost or nat reafsable value)
Stock in Trade(Drugs & Pharmaceutical items) 173.45 1,256 10
Packing Material . 177
Toual 173.45 1.257.87
Nato Parilsutars As At As At
No. 31sl March, 2022 31st March, 2021
fla. bnLaca Fa. |rLacs
8  Trade Recelvables (Unsecured)
Considered good 68519 1,430 66
Less Atzwance lor mipected credl| oeses (91.59) (16 69)
Credit Impaed 2062 -
Less: Alowance for credit impairment (2062) -
Total 693.80 1.413.87
In accordance with Ind AS 109 , the Company applies Expected Credit Loss ( ECL ) model for the and ition of i loss towards expected risk in delays and

default in colection.

Information abotd single largest customer

A single largest customer has total share in sales 93.03% ( 31st March, 2021: 68 67%) and in receivables 66 20% (31st March, 2021: 68 30%)

The movement in alowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as folows:

Allgwnnca for oxpacted credit loss

Opening balance
Expected credit loss created /(reversad)
Closing balance

As At 318t March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
Rs. InLacs Rs.InLacs
1669 1.06
2552 158
Mz 1680

The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade recevables, based on the Company’s historical experience
towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period

Ageing tin
Upto 180 days 0%
180-355 dayi 20%
JE5-730 dayy 40%
T35-1055 days 50%
>105% days 100%
Trade Recelvables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022:
[Partisutars Not Due Less than & Munths & Morths - 1 Yesr 12 Year 103 Years More than 3 Years [Tertal
Uridiaputas rwceiyubles = contidered good 37583 ELES 5y 336 1870 007 55339
JIEI T J4£53 3645 oo 143066
F Trade teceivabled - credit Impsired - [E7] 1533 501 108
Disputed Trade receivabl good
Disputed Trade recalvables ~ crndit impaired
Lass: Allowsnes far Exnected Crodit boss 828 550 na.78 1358 o7 e
. . 77 4oz aod 1669
Tetsl Trade Racolvables 37583 M5y 38 =513 £13 55150
729.11 S1R47 138.76 27.57 ao? 141197

{Prewicus Yew figuzss are in itslex)




Note Partlculars. As AL As At
No. 1st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Aa inlacs Rs. In Lacs
9  Cash & Cash Equivalent
Balance with Banks:
- In Caarart Ascounts 7598 1168
Cash on hand - 041
Total 75.98 12,09
Nota Particulars As At As At
No. 318t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Ra InLacs A, inlacs
10 Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of 9293 68 86
more than 3 months and remaining maturity of
less than 12 months
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of 1162 .
more than 12 months and remaining maturity of more
than 12 months
Amourt disclosed under Other Non-Current Financial Assets (1462) =
Total 92.93
Note Particulars As At As At
Note 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Other Financlal Assets
11 Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2.01 187
876
Amouwnt Recaverable (Unsecured, Considered good) 4023
Less: Alowance for Expected Credit Loss 15 08)
324
42.85 1.87
The movement in allowance for expectad credit loss in respect of amount recoverable during the yesr wss as follows
Allowance for 4 it loss 318l March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Au. I Lacs Rs.In Laca
Opening balance *
Exzected predl loss creates f{ieversed) 805
Closing balance




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
12 Eaquity Share Capital:
Authorised Shares (in nos.) 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,00,00,000 (Previous Year 2,00,00,000)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares (in nos.)
1,00,10,000 (Previous Year 1,00,10,000)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1,001.00 1,001.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital 1,001.00 1,001.00
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
Reconciliation As At As At
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Nos. Rs. in Lacs Nos. Rs. in Lacs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,10,000 1,001.00 1,00,10,000 1,001.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,10,000 1,001.00 1,00,10,000 1,001.00

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, where
voting is held by show of hands. In case of Poll each holder of equity share is entitled to Number of votes against Number of shares held.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity share holders.

¢. Equity Shares held by holding company :

Name of the Shareholder

As At 31st March, 2022

As At 31st March, 2021

No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs
Classic Industries and Exports Limited
holding company
(including nominee shares) 1,00,10,000 1,001.00 1,00,10,000 1,001.00

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder

As At 31st March, 2022

As At 31st March, 2021

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Classic Industries and Exports Limited
holding company
(including nominee shares) 1,00,10,000 100% 1,00,10,000 100.00%
e. Details of Equity Shares Held by the Promoters at the end of the year:
Name of the Shareholder As At 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021 % Change in
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holdina Holding
Classic Industries and Exports Limited
holding company .
(including nominee shares) 1,00,10,000 100% 1,00,10,000 100.00%
y N




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs

13  Other Equity:

Retained earnings

Balance as per last financial Statements (1,484.88) (530.23)

Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year (664.39) (959.51)

Add : Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement 4.06 4.86
of defined benefit obligation net of income tax

Balance at end of year (2,145.21) (1,484.88)

Total Other Equity (2,145.21) (1,484.88)

Description of reserve

Retained Earnings
Retained eamings represents the profit/(loss) that the Company has eamed/incurred.



Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Non-<Current Current Non-Current Current
14 Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity * 020 0.00 5.18 0.03
Leave Benefits 0.21 002 3.90 3.7
(Refer Note 33)
* figures are below rounding off norms applied by the Company
(Rs 34 far current liahility for F Y 2021-27)
Total 0.41 0.02 9.08 374
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
15 Borrowings
Bank Overdraft (secured)* - 1,944.37
Loan from Holding Company (Unsecured)™ 1,075.00 -
Total 1,076.00 1,044.37

*Bank Overdraft for routine working capital purpose / cash flow mismatch and the same is secured by the charge on stock and

other moveable's including book debts & furlher secured by Corporale Guarantee of Holding Company

The company has filed all the required quarlerly retum stalemenls of currenls assels wilh the bank as per covenants of ihe Sanction of Working Capital

Limit which are in agreement with the books of accounls and there are no material discrepancies in the same.
=* Loan from Holding Company is repayable on demand

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
16 Trade payables
Tolal Oulstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises  (Refer Nole 32) 97.79 208.97
Total Outslanding dues of Credilors olher than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enlerprises 1,023 57 1,533.67
Total 1,121.36 1,742.64
Trade Payable agelng schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022:
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME 97.79 - 97.79
20897 - 208.97
(i) Others 29226 12549 41775
1,445.46 88.21 1,633.67
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - -
(iv)Dispuled dues - Others - 605.82 - 605.82
Total 390.05 731.31 - 1,121.36
1,654.43 88.21 1,742.64
(Previous Year Figures are in Halics)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
16A Other Financial Liabilities
Interest accured but not dus ., 71.32 =
(On Loan from Holding Company) -
Other Liabilities * 122 82 -
Security Deposits 288 =
Total 197.02 -
* Other liabililies includes paymenls due to employees, to subsidiary company on account of subsription of share capital , on account of capilal items
elc.
Note Particulars As At As At
No, 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
17  Other Liabilities
Current
Advance from Customers# 9.18 83.34
Taxes payable* 917 61.60
Security Deposits 841
Olher Payable * * 1.03 31.57
Total 19.38 184.92
_—

# Advances from cuslomers for which the Company is obliged o transfer goods or services to the cusiomers

*  Taxes payable includes Withholding Tax,Goods & Services Tax
** Olher payable includes payments due on account of contribution 1o PF, ESI etc.




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
18 Revenue frcm Operations
Sale of Goods
Sale of Drugs & Pharmaceutical Items- Traded Goods 4,164.69 5,518.54
Other Operating Revenue
Commission Income 19.18
Total 4,183.87 5,518.54

Note Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
19 Other Income
Interest Income 4.30 3.91
- From Bank deposits 3.46 2.57
- From Others 0.06 -
- From Financial Assets carried at amortised cost 0.78 1.34
Gain on derecognition of Right-Of-Use Asset 12.36 16.72
Foreign Exchange Gain (net) - 0.62
Other Non Operating Income 29.11
Unclaimed credit balances/provisions no longer 28.83
required written back
- Others 0.28 3.88
Total 45.77 25.13
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
20.1 Purchases of Stock in Trade* 3,085.59 4,796.32
Total 3,085.59 4,796.32
*Including goods manufactured under contract manufacturing
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
20.2 (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Stock in Trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year 1,256.10 1,479.08
Inventories at the end of the year 173.45 1,082.65 1,256.10 222.98
Total 1,082.65 222.98




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

21 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 77.72 556.49
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 4.55 29.15
Gratuity Expenses 0.45 3.08
Staff Welfare Expenses 2.33 6.88
Total 85.05 595.60

Note Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
22 Finance Costs
Interest Expenses:
On Lease Liability measured at amortised cost 7.42 27.94
On Loan from Holding Company 79.25 =
Interest on Bank Overdraft 29.48 149.03
Other Interest Expenses 1.44 0.14
Other Borrowing Cost 1.00 2.50
Bank Charges 5.66 2.08
Total 124.25 181.69

Note Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
23 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 34.99 33.88
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 35.29 58.56
Amortization of intangible assets 0.96 0.94
Total 71.24 93.38




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars

No.

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Rs. in Lacs

For the year ended

31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs

24 Other expenses

Consumption of Packing Material
Lease Rent Expenses

Equipment Hire Charges

Rates & Taxes

Legal & Professional Fees

Foreign Exchange Loss (Net)
Printing & Stationery

Outsourced Manpower

Repair & Maintenance -office

Selling & Distribution Expenses
Freight & Forwarding

Power & Fuel

Internet & Communication Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance
Miscellaneous Expenses
Advertisement & Business Promotion
Insurance

Courier Expenses

Conference & Seminars

Vehicle Running Exp.

Loss on sale/scrap of Property,Plant and Equipment (Net)

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss
Bad Debts written off

Auditors Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Other Services & certification

Total

9.67
37.49
3.63
0.07
24.73
1.06
1.51
18.02
17.35
2.35
32.16
9.31
3.82
5.39
7.90

4.28
175

0.91
13.83
323.88
15.28

2.00
0.75
0.08

537.22

44.37
2.59
3.57
0.05

131.93

6.87
35.47
14.20

6.85
95.60
19.86
13.96
54.56

1.61
12.46

5.65

8.72

0.90

1.64

15.63

2.00
0.75
0.20

479.44



Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 25 INCOME TAX
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Tax
(a) In respect of the current year - =
Deferred Tax
(a) In respect of the current year (91.97) 133.77
Tax expense (credit) recognised through statement of profit and loss (91.97) 133.77
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (1.37) (1.64)
Tax expense (credit) recognised through Other Comprehensive Income (1.37) (1.64)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting
profit as follows:
Profit/(loss) before tax (756.36) (825.74)
Enacted income tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax calculated (190.36) (207.82)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determing taxable profit 0.24 -
Others 98.15 341.59
Income tax expense (credit) recognised in statement of profit & loss (91.97) 133.77




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes to Financial § r ear anded 31st March, 2022

Note No.

1.1

Nature of operations
Premedium Phammnaceuticals Private Limited (“the Company”} is a company incorporated and domiciled in India, having it's registered office at New Delhi, India. The Company is in the business
of contract manufacturing, developing and marketing and trading a wide range of branded and generic formulalions and Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs).

New and amended standards
There were certain amendments that apply for the first time for the year ending 31 March 2022, but do not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Comapny. The Company has
not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effeclive

{i) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate (IBORY) is replaced with an allemative nearly risk-free interesl rate (RFR)
The amendments include the following practical expedients:

A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by Lhe reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a
movemant in & marke! rate of inlarast

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relalionship being discontinued
Provide temporary relief {o entilies from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component
These amendments had no impact on the consolidaled financial statements of the Company

(i) Conceptual framework for financlal reporting under Ind AS Issued by ICAl

The Framework is not a Slandard and it does not override any specific standard, Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the slandard-setiers, While, the
Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, il has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting policies for
areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounling policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret lhe Standards.

The amendments made in following slandards due to Conceplual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS includes amendment of the footnote lo the definition of an
equily inslrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definilion of iability is not revised on account of revision of definition
in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Conlingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc

The MCA has notified Lhe Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated 18 June 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2024 Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to updale the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Since Company's current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, there is no material effect on the financial statements of the Company

(iv} Ind AS 103: Business comblnation

The amendmenl slates that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India at the acquisition dale Therefore, the acquirer does nol recognise those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises Lhose costs in ils post-

combination financial stalements in accordance with other Ind AS

This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enter into any business combinations

(v) Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind A

The definition of “Recoverabls amount® is amended such that the words “lhe higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced wilh “higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

These amendmenls had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company

New and amended standards, not yet effective

The Minislry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in consultation with National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA) vide its notification dated 23 March 2022, has made certain amendments in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard Rules), 2015, Such amendments shall come inlo force with effect from 1 April 2022, but do not have a material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Company,

(i) Ind AS 103: Business comblnation

The amendmenls specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meel the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporling under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date, These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103,

This amendmenl may impact future periods should the Company enler into any business combinations.
{ii) Ind AS 37: Provisions, Contingent Llabilitles, and Contingent Assets

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs thal relate directly to the contract’, Cosls lhat relate direclly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that conlract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Since Company's curent practice is in line with the clarifications issued, lhere may not be material effect on Lhe financial statemenls of the Company.




{iii) Ind AS 109: FInanclal Instruments

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. Since Company current praclice
is in line with the clarifications issued, there may not be material effect on the financial statements of the Company.

{iv} Ind AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company daes not expect the amendments to have any impact on the financial
stalements

1.2 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a} Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Slandards (IndAS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read together with (Indian

Accounting Standards ) Rule 2015 as amended

The financial statements were authenticated by the Company's Board of Directors on 10lh May, 2022 Details of the accounting policies are included in Note 1

b} Basls of preparation and presentation

The financial stalements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured al fair values at the end of each reporting period

Historical Cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valualion technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company taken into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure

purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis.

In addilion, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised inlo Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to Lhe fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusled) in active markets for idenlical assets or liabiliies that the entity can access at the measurement date;
. Level 2 inpuls are inpuls, other than quoted prices included wilhin Level 1, that are observable for the assets or liabilities either directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assel or liability.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
property, plani and equipment to its working condition for ils the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the property, plant and equipment to its working condilion for its to get ready
for its inlended use are also included 1o the extent they relate to the period till such property, plant and equipment are ready to be put to use Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when
they increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the cash price equivalenl at the recognition date If payment is deferred beyond normal credil lermns, the difference between the cash price
equivalent and the tolal payment is recognised as interest over the period of credit, unless such interest is capilalised as per borrowing cost

The Company identifies and determines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and equipment, if they have useful life that is materially different from that of the
remaining asset, as per Schedule |l of Companies Act, 2013

d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on all of the property, plant and equipment on the cost of assets less their residual values on straight line method over the useful lives as indicated in Part C of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013. Deprecialion Methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimale accounted for on a
prospective basis

Leasehold Improvement have been depreciated as per the useful life ascertained or over the primary period of lease, whichever is shorter,

e) Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Other inlangibles

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognilion at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding product development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred

Subsequent measurement (Amortisation and useful lives)

All finite-lived intangible assets, including intemally developed intangible assets, are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised cosls are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and any change in the same is accounted for prospectively. The following useful lives are applied:

Intanaible asse | | | ortisation period
Softwarn | | | 3 Years

for S




f) Leases

Whero the Company s the lesses

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of teases for buildings. | he Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A contract 1s, or contains, a
lease if Lhe contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whelher a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:(i) the contract involves the use of an identified assel (ii) the Company has subslantially all of lhe economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the assel

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right-of-use asset (‘ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, excepl for
leases with a term of twelve months or less(shorl-term leases)and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease paymenls as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the oplions to extend or terminale the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
cortain that thoy will ba oxereised.

The Right-of-use assets are Inltlally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted tor any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Righl-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straighl-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis

The lease liability is initially measured at amorlized cost at the present vatue of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment o the related right of use assel if the Company changes its

assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option, Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymenls have been
classified as financing cosl

Where the Company Is the lassor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership lo the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Assets subject to operaling leases are included in PPE. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the statement of profil and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where lhe
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the year in

which such benefits accrue benefits accrue,

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negolialing and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carmying amount of the leased assets and recognised on a straight line basis over lhe lease term

g} Inventories

Inventories consisting of stock-in-trade, stores and spares, finished goods & packing material are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of all categories of inventories
is based on the first in first out (FIFO).

Net realizable value is the estimaled selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimaled cosls necessary to make lhe sale

h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, exclusive of any trade discounts, volume rebales and any

taxes or duties collected on behalf of the govemment which are levied on sales such as Goods and Services Tax. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue

arrangements since itis the primary obligor in all lhe revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credil risks

The Company applies the revenue recognition crileria lo each separately identifiable component of the Revenue transaction as set out
below:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of product are recognised, al a point of time when the contral of the goods has passed to the buyer i.e. at the paint of sale/ delivery to lhe customer al an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods, Sale is net of sales retums, discounts & Goods & Services Tax

Interest
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounl outstanding and the applicable interest rate
i) Foreign currency transactlons

In preparing the financial statements, transaction in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized al the rales of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting pariod
i) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date,

ii) Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was delermined
iiiy Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign cumrency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the slatement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise excepl exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assels when they are regarded as adjustment to inlerest costs on those foreign currecy borrowings.

) Employees Benefits

Short term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee benefits, These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and exgralia. The

undiscounled amount of short-lerm employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by lhe employees.




Post employment beneifts
fingd con i lans
A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounlts. The Company
makes specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee slate insurance to Govemment administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service,

Defined banafit plang

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefil plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have eamed and retumed for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounled to determine ils present value. The calculation of Company's obligation under the
plan is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using Lhe projecled unit credit method

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit Lhat relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Compenssted sheencas

the employees can camy-forward a portion of the unulilized accrued compensaled absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employmentl
The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which he employee renders the services thal increase this entittement. The obligalion is measured on the
basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

k) Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

i) Cument Tax

The tax currently payable is hasad on taxahle profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss becauss of itams of income or
expense that are laxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year,

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India,

if) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computalion of taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profils will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused lax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred lax assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of assets to be recovered.

Deffered tax is measured based on tax rales and tax laws enacted or substanlively enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if legally enforceable right exisls to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

jiify Curent and defamred tax for th r

Current tax is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to ilems that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity respectively.

1) Earnings Per share

Basic eamings per share is being calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the period (including prior period items, if any) attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for Lhe period atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Operating Cycle

Based on the nalure of products / activities of the Company and the normal lime between acquisilion of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

n) Investments In the nature of equity in subsidlary
The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiary at cost (net of impairmenl , if applicable )

o) Financlal Instruments

Financial assets and financia! liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments,

Financial assels and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valua Transactinn ensts that are directly attribitahle tn the acquisition ar issie of finaneial assats and financial liahilities (nther
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from Lhe fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriale, on initial
racognition. Trancaotion ooots diraotly attribulablo to tho aoquisition of financial assets or financisl liabilities at fair valus through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit

AN INSS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assels that
require delivery of assets wilhin the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Al iecugnised finandial assels are subsequenlly medsuied In el entiely at ellien amorlised cost or fal value, depending on the classificatlon of the nanclal assets

Classification of financiat assels

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for financial assets that are designaled as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

i) the assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels in order to collect contractual cash flows ; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amounl outstanding

TN




Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through olher comprehensive income (except for financial assets that are designated as al fair value
through profil or loss an initial recognition):

i) the assets is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting conlractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding,

Interest income is recognised in profil or loss for financial assets designaled at fair value through olher comprehensive income (FVTOCI). For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains
and losses, FVTOCI financial assets are ireated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for financial assets through other
comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in Lhis reserve is reclassified to profit or loss,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value

Effective interast method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period, The effective inleresl rale is Lhe rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an inlegral part of the effeclive interesl rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net camrying amounl on initial recognition

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than thoss financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item.

Einancial assets at fair value through p orless (FVTPLY

A financial asset lhal meets the amortised cost crileria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designaled as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assels or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Company has not designated any debl instrument as at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable lhat the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial gssats

The Company applies lhe expected credit loss model for recognising impaimment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTQCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occuming as the weights, Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Company in accordance wilh the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e, all cash shortfalls), discounted al the original effeclive inierest rate (or
credit-adjusled effeclive interesl rate for purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual lerms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, exlension, call and similar options) through lhe expected life of that financial instrument

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if lhe credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, If the credil risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal lo 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expecled credit losses are portion of Lhe life-lime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if defaull occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicled over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expecled credil loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk
has not increased significantly since inilial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared Lo lhe previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-
month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significanl increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessmenl, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with Lhe risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as al the dale of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credil risk since initial recognilion

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

Further, for lhe purpose of measuring lifetime expecled credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a praclical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 108, This expecled
credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes inlo account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that lhe loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecoanition of financial asseis

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substanlially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of Lhe asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substanlially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Company recognises ils retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts il may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collaleralised borrowing for the proceeds received

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amounl and the sumn of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have olherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial assel.




On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (.9, when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous camying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of lhose parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and lhe sum of the consideralion received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in olher comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have olherwise been
recagnised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the parl that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on Lhe basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Foreian exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency
denominated financial assets measured at amoriised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss since there are no designated hedging
instrumenis in a hedging relationship.

All financial liabililies are subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the effective interest method or at FVTPL

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or then the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts
issued by the Company, and commilments issued by the Company to-provide a loan at below-markel interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below

Financi. 1] t FVTP

Financial liabililies are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS
103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
i) it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near ierm; or

i) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The nel gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporales
any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability Lhat is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in Lhe liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss, The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is atways
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in olher comprehensive income are reflecled immediately in retained eamings
and are not subsequenlly reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company thal are designaled by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
stalement of profit and loss.

Eingncial abilites subsequantly measurad at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at lhe end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of
financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective inlerest method. Interest expense that is nol capitalised as parl of costs of an asset is
included in the ‘Finance costs' line ilem

The effective interest method is a melhod of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interesl rate is Lhe rate

that exaclly discounts estimated future cash paymenls (including all fees and points paid or received that form an inlegral part of the effective inleresl rate, transaclion cosls and other premiums
or discounts) through the expecled life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, lo the net carrying amount on inilial recognilion

Finaneisl guarantee coniracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified deblor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequenlly measured at the higher of:
i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18,

Commitments 1o provide a |oan st & below-marks! interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
iy Lhe amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS18

Fora xchange jDase:

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign cumency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income'

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign cuirency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profil or loss.
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Derecoanition of tinancial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financiul liability (whether or not attributable to the financlal difficulty of the debtor) 1s accounted for as an extnguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
statement of profit & loss.

p) Provlsl & Contl 1

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present abligation at the end of tha reparting parind, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whon a provision is measured using the cash flows astimated to saltle the present vbliyalion, its vanying amount is Uie present value of thuse cash
flews (when the effect of the time value of money is matorial). Whon somo or all of the aconomic banefits required 1o seltle a pruvisivi are eapecled W be iecuvered fiun a Uild peaily, o
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

q} Contingent Liabilitles

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more of uncertain future events beyond
the control of company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the an obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in the extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably its existence in the financial statements The Company does not
recognize the contingent liability but disclosed its existence in financial statements.

r) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement are comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand and short term investments with an original maturity of three months
or less, Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms parl of financial activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown
within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement.

s) Critical Accounting Estimate
The impairment provisions for trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected credit loss rates. The Company uses judgements in making certain
assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and
defaults at the end of each reporting period.

Segmental Reporting
arali egmen

Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” ('Ind AS 108) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and related disclosures about
products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “management approach® as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent
with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s
sole operating segment is therefore ‘Sale of Pharmaceuticals Products’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure 1o be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the
financial statemants.




Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Nate 27: Ratio

Particulars Units 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 % change from

March 31, 2021

toMar31,.2022 |
Current Ratio Times 0.44 0.77 (4229
Debt-Equity Ratio Times (0.94) {4.02) (76.62)
Debt Service Coverage ratio Times (4.51) (3.03) 48.94
Inventory Turnover ratio Times 5.82 3,65 59.53
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Times 4.17 3.86 8.04
Trade Payable Turmover Ratio Times 215 290 (25.76)
Net Capita! Turnover Ratio Times {3.09) (5.99) (48.41)
Net Profit ratio Percentage (0.16) (0.17) (8.67)
Relum on Equity ratio Percentage 0.82 146.41 (99.44)
Retum on Capilal Employed Percentage 9.13 (0.44) (2,171.19)
Retum on Investment Percentage (0.49) (0.18) 169.60
Note 27.2: Elements of Ratio (Xin Lacs)

Ratios 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Numerator D 1 Numerator Denominator

Current ratio 1,069.78 2422 98 2,999.27 3,920.00
Debt- Equity Ratio 1.075.00 (1,144.21) 1,944 37 (483 88)
Debt Service Coverage ratio (560.88) 124 25 (550.67) 181.69
Inventory Tumover ratio 4,168.24 71566 5.019.30 1,374.84
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio 4.183.87 1,003.78 5.518.54 1.430.41
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio 3.085.59 1.432.00 4.796.32 1,652.61
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 4,183.87 (1,353.20) 5.518.54 (920.73)
Net Profit Ratio (664.39) 4,183.87 (959.51) 5,518.54
Return on Equity ratio (664.39) (814 04) (959.51) (6.55)
Return on Capital Employed (632.11) (69.21) (644 .06) 1.460.49
Retumn on {nvestment (632.11) 1.279.18 (644.06) 3.513.75

Nota 27.3: Consideration of Element of Ratio

i Current Ratio:

Debt-Equity Ratio:

iii. Debt Service Coverage ratio:

z

Inventory Tumover ratio:

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio:

=<

vi. Trade Payable Tumover Ratio:

vii. Net Capital Turnover Ratio:

vili. Net Profit ratio:

ix. Return on Equity ratio:

x. Retum on Capital Employed:

Ai. Rotuin un livestinenl.

MATA A/ AL LIARRARA TAF MAFRA TRAR JRYL

Numerator= Current Assets
Denominator= Current Liabiliies

Numerator= Total Debt
Denominator= Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit before Tax + Finance cost + Depreciation
Denominalor= Repayment of Borrowings + Interest on Borrowings
Numerator= Cost of Goods Sold

Denominator= Average Invenlory

Numerator= Total Sales
Denominator=Average Trade Receivables

Numerator= Total Purchases
Denominator= Average Trade Payables

Numerator= Revenue from operations
Denominator= Working Capital (i e, Current Assets - Current Liabilities)

Numerator= Net Profit after tax
Benominator= Revenue from operations

Numeralor= Net Profit after tax
DOenominator= Average Shareholder’s Equity

Numerator= Eaming before interest and taxes
Denominator= Total Networth+ Total Debt+ Total Deferred Tax Liability

Numerator= Eaming betore interest ana taxes
Denuninaloi- lulal Assets

| [WAAFARAA] IR ARAVA FANIAR

Particulars

% change from

Current Ratio

Debt-Equity Ratlo

The change in ratio has been due to decrease in inventory held by the Company as on 31st March 2022 vis a vis the previous year
duo to low invontory lovelo maintainod by tho Company conaidoring tho future orders and reduction in trade receivables due 12
reduction in credit sales by the Company.
The change In rallo Is dus to decrease In borrowlngs durlng the year as the Cuntpany have a Jebil balanue in wverdiaflt account
and the Company have incurred substantial operational losses during the year

Debt Service Coverage ratio

The change in ratio is due to reduction of the borrowings during the year.

Inventory Tumover ratio

The change in ratio has been due to decrease in inventory held by the Company as on 31st March 2022 vis a vis the previous year
due to low inventory levels maintained by the Company considering the future orders

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio

Not Significant

Trada Payable Tumover Ratio

The Change in ratio is due to decrease in purchase of inventory by the Company considering the future orders.

Net Capital Tumover Ratio

As stated in the reason for change in current ratio, the The change in ratio has been due to decrease in inventory held by the
Company as on 31st March 2022 vis a vis the previous year due to low inventory levels maintained by the Company considering
the future orders and reduction in trade receivables due to reduction in credit sales by the Company.

Net Profit ratio

Not Significant

Retumn on Equity ratio

Thie change In ratio |s due substantial losses incurred by the Company during the year and negative net worlh ot the Company

Retumn on Capilal Employed

The change in ratio is due substantial losses incurred by the Company during the current and previous year leading to negative nel
worth of the Company and reduction of the borowings outstanding on 31st March 2022 vis a vis the previous year.

Return on Investment

The Change is ratio is due to reduction in the invenlory held by the Company as on 31st March 2022 vis a vis the previous year
due to low inventory levels maintained by the Company considering the future orders




28 Capital and Other Commitments

a) Capltal Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account not provided for (Net of Advances)

b) Other Commitments
i) For commitments relating to lease amangement please refer to Note No. 30

ial non-car

i) The Company does not have any long term cc its or 1

material foreseeable losses.

29 Related party transactions

a) Name of related party

Parties where control exlsts Irr tive of whether tr t have occurred or not
Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

Names of other related partles with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel

Subsidiary company

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their relatives

b) Transactions during the year

Rs. In Lacs

As at 31st
March, 2022

As at 31st
March, 2021

73.20

Sunrays Properties and Investment Co. (P) Ltd

Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari (Director)

Dr. Dilip 8irdi (Director)

Mr.Rakesh Haldia (CFO) (upto 31st January,2021)

Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria

Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt Ltd.

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

Key Management Personnel and
their relatives

Enterprises owned or significantly
influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives

As at 31st
March 2022

As at 31st
March 2021

As at 31st
March 2022

As at 31

st

March 2021

As at 31st
March 2021

As at 31st
March 2022

As at 31st
March 2021

As at 31st
March 2022

Sale of pharmaceuticals
products

Artemis Medicare Services Ltd.

4,356 .49 3.789.83

Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt Ltd

1.47 356

Sale of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Artamis Madicare Services Lid.

N
N
o
®

Advance Recelved

Artemis Medicare Services Ltd

- 67.50

Advance Repald

Arlemis Medicare Services Ltd.

@
N
o
(=

Loan Recelved

Classic Indusiries and Exports 1,075.00
Limited -

Interest on Loan

Classic Industries and Exports 79.25
imited

Corporate Gurantee Fee

Classic Industries and Exports
Limited

N
~
(-]
w
i
(=]

Key Managerial Personnel-
fon/ C

Fees

Or. Dilip Birdi

4727 53.57

Rakesh Haldia

- 18 70

Defined Benefit Obligation

Dr. Dilip Birdi

* Transactions are reported including taxes.

Rs.inLacs

Name of Entity

Balance Pavable

As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st
March, 2022

Subsidiary Company

Holding Company

Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria

Classic Industries and Exports Limited

18.26 18.51

1,149.32 -

g

\;
&

D:Jlli-‘-'

o

contractual commitments/contracts, including derivative coniracis for which there were any
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As at 31st As at 31st
Balance Recoverable Name of Entity March, 2022 March, 2021
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Artemis Medicare Services Ltd. 45357 965.12
key management personnel or their relatives
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt Ltd. 0.25 -
key management personnel or their relatives
Subsidiary Company Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria 168 168
Leases
Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022 (Rs in Lacs)
Yoar Ended
Particufars 31t March Y';r::: 3323:;'
2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 112.88 luch-gl
Lease Liability added/(Deleted) during the year (68.20) {146.73)
Finance cost accrued during the period 7.42 2794
Payment of Lease Liability 41.90 71.54
Balance at the end of the year 10.20 112.88
Impact on the statement of profit or loss (Increase / (decrease) )
(Rs in Lacs)
Year Endad Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 31st March
2022 2021
Depreciation expense 35.29 58.56
Rent expense (41.90) (71.54)
Finance Cost 7.42 27.94
Gain on derecognition of Right-Of-Use Asset (12.36) (16.72)
(11.55) {1.76)

Loss (profit) for the year

B The company incurred Rs. 41.12 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2022 (Previous year Rs. 6.16 Lacs) towards expenses related to short term leases and leases of low value assets.

31
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Eaming Per Share (EPS)

Rs_in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Year Ended Period Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March 2021
Net profit afler Tax
Profit / {Loss) attribulable to the Equity Shareholders (664 39) (959.51)
Basic / Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Outstanding during the period 1,00,10,000 4,00,10,000
Eaming Per Share (in Rupees)
- Basic (6.64) (9.59)
- Diluted (6.64) (9.59)
10.00 10.00

Nominal value of Equity Shares

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According to such
identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006™ are as follows:

Information In terms of Sectlon 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Rs. in Lacs

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31st
March 2022

As at 31st March
2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each

accounting year

87.99

199.17

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise

during each accounting year

Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2005.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the period) bul without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year, and the amount of

section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

9.80

980

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.




33 Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan
b The company has recognized, in statement of Profit & Loss for year ended 31st March 2022 an amount of Rs 4.55 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 29 15 Lacs) under defined contribution
plans.

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Expense under defined contribution plans include: Rs in Lacs Rsin Lacs
a) Employer's contribution to provident fund 4,43 28.37
b) Employer's contribution to Employee State insurance Corporation 0.03 0.15
c) Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.09 063
4.55 29.15

The expense is disclosed in the line item - contribution 1o provident fund and other funds in Note No.21

Defined benefit plan
0} The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has compleled five years or more of the service gets a gratuity on retirement / terminaltion al 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company has also provided for long-term compensated absences.

Gratuity (unfunded) Leaves {unfunded)
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
@ Reconciliation of opening and closing balances
of obligations:
a) Obligation at the beginning 522 8.63 7.61 14.64
b) Current Service Cost 0.10 2.49 0.13 374
c) Interest Cost 0.35 0.59 0.52 1.00
d) Past Service Cost - - - -
e) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (5.43) (6.50) (6.47) 4.36
) Benefits paid (0.04) - (1.55) (16.13)
Q) Obligation al the year end 020 521 023 761
(ii) Change in Plan Assets (Reconciliation of opening
and closing balances):
a) Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning - - -
b) Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
c) Expected retum on Plan Asset . B - -
d) Contributions - . =
e) Benefits paid - - -
f) Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets - - - -
Q) Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - -
(iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:
a) Present value of obligation at year end 020 521 023 761
b) Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end B - . -
Asset / Liability recognized in the Balance
c) Sheet 0.20 521 023 7.61
(iv) Amount recognized in the income statement
a) Curreni Service Cost 0.10 249 013 374
b} Past Service Cost & =
c) Interest Cost 0.35 0.59 0,52 1.00
d) Curtailment Cost (Credit)
e) Expected retun on Pian Assets
f) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (6.47) 436
[+)] Expenses recognized during the year 045 3.08 (5.82) 910
v) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
a) Unrealised actuarial (Gain) / Loss (543) {6.50)
W) Assumptions: As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
a) Discounting Rate (per annum) 7.26% 6.80%
b} Fulure Salary Increase 5.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal / Employee Tumover Rate
<) Age upto 30 years 5.00% 5.00%
3.00%

d) Age from 31 to 44 years 3.00%

€e) Age above 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
i Indian Assured Lives Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Moriality table used (2006-08) (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the

employment market.
Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discounted rate, expected salary escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The above information is certified by the actuarial valuer.

Enterprise best estimale of contribution during next year is 0.14 for Gratuitiy & Rs. 0.06 Lacs for Leave Encashment.

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield of Govemnment of India bonds as at the date of valu‘gnn. Rs. In Lacs
Partlcula As at As at
i 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Increase |  Decrease Increase | Decrease
Change in discount rale by 0.50% (0.03) 0.04 (0.39) 0.42
0.04 (0.03) 0.42 (0.39)

Change in Salary escatation rate by 0.50%
Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated

Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on
retirement.
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Financlal Instruments

0 Capital Management

The Company’s objective while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn, so that it can continue to provide optimum relums to the shareholders and to
other stakeholders. Further its objective is to maintain an optimal structure to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Note No.15 offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company’s Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on need basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associaled with each class
of capital. The gearing ratio at 31st March 2022 of -87% (previous year -399% ) (See below)

Gearing Rato :
The gaaring ratio at and of the reparting perind was as follows : {Rs. inLsos)
Martisulars As at 31st As at J1st
March 2022 March 2021
Debt * 1,075.00 1,944.37
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 9) 75.98 12.09
Net Debt 899.02 1,932.28
Total Equity (1.144.21) (483.88)
Nat Debt to Equity Ratio 87% -399%

* Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings.
) Credit isk management
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed through credil approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

i) Categorles of Financial Instrumants
(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 31st As at 31st

Financlal Assets
March 2022 March 2021

Measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets- Non Curmrent 14.62 27.38
Non Current Investments 19.71 19.71
Trade receivables-Current 593.60 1,413.97
Other financial assets-Current 4295 1.87
Cash and cash equivalents 75.98 12.09
Other Bank Balances-Current 9293 68.86
Total 839.79 1,543.88

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of financial assets designated at FVTPL, The cairying amount reflected above represents the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets
(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 31st As at 31st

Financlal Liabilities
March 2022 March 2021

Mesured at amortised cost

Trade payables - Current 1,121.36 1,742.64
Lease Liabilities-Non Current - 68.85
Lease Liabilities-Current 10.20 4433
Other Financial Liabilities-Current 197,02 8.41
Borrowings-Current 1,075.00 1,944.37
Total 2,403.58 3,808.30

iv) Financlal Risk Management Objsctives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and inlerational financial markets including market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Company through infemal risk reports which analyse exposure by magnitude of risk

Liquidity risk management

Uitimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management fi ork for the manag 1t of
the company’s shor-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by mainiaining adequate reserves,
banking facilites and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the malurity profiles of financial assets and liabilities,
Note given below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities thal the Company has at ils disposal to further reduce liquidity risk

Liquidlty risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities
as of March 31, 2022

. (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Within 1 year 1-2years More than 2 Total Carrylng
years Amount
As at 31st March 2022
Trade Pavables 1,121.36 - - 1,121.36 1.121.36
Lease | iability 10.20 - - 1020
Other Financial Liabililies 197.02 - - 197.02 197.02
Borrowinas 1,075 00 - - 1,075.00 1,075.00
Total 240358 - - 2,403.58 2.403.58
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(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Within 1 year 1-2years More than 2 Total Carrylng
YEArs Amount
As at 31st March 2021
Trade Payables 1,742.84 - - 1,742.64 1.742.84
Lease Liability 44.33 23.82 44,73 112.88 112.88
Bormrowings 1,944.37 - - 1,944 37 1,944.37
Other Financial Liabilities 8.41 - - 841 8.41
Total 3,739.75 23.82 44.73 3,808.30 3,799.90

v) Forelgn Currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign cumrencies; consequently, exposures 10 exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within

approved policy parameters

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

| abiims Foreign As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
iabilities Currency FCin lacs By u:::_l::; L FC in lacs Equ::?j::; Rs.
Payables ( others) (A) Naira 100,00 18,26 100.00 18.51
Hedges by derivative contracts (B) Naira = - = -
Unhedged Payables (A-B) Naira 100.00 18.26 100.00 18,51

Foreign currency sensHivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the Nigerian Naira Currency

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the Rupees against the USD. 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
intemally 1o key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rales. In case of net foreign currency
outflow, a positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the Rs. strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of the Rupees against the
relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative

{Rs: in Laes)

If decrease by 1% Currency Impact (Naira)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022 March 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 0.18 .13
Increase / ) in tota] equity as at ihe and of the reporiing pericd 0.18 0.18
{Rs. in Lacs)

If increase by 1% Currency Impact (Naira)

Particul As at 31st As at 31st
— March 2021 | March 2020
Increase / (decrease) In profit or loss for the year (0.18) {0.19) |
Increase [ (decreass) In total equity as at the end of the reporting penod {0.18) (0.19}
Disclosure ws 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Purpose Amount Outstanding Amount Qutstanding
P As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Investment in subsidiary company 19.71 19,71
( Refer Note 3 1) Inveslment
Disclosure under IND AS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers) (Rs. In Lacs)
. Disaggregated revenue information Year ended
31st March Year ended
2022 31st March 2021
Type of Services or goods
Sale of Products 4,164.69 5,518, 54
Other Operating Revenue 19,18 -
Total 4,183.87 5,518.54
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India 4,117.05 5,384.50
66.82 134.04

Revenue from Customers based outside India
Total 4,103,087 5,616,564

Timing of Revenue Recognition

Goods transferred al a point in time 4, 183.87 5.518.54
lotal 4, 183,87 5,818.54
(Rs. In Lacs)
Trade recelvables and Contract Customers As at 31 March As at 31 March
2022 2021
Trade Receivables (includes GST) (Net of ECL) 593.60 1,413.97
593.60 1,413.97

Total

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 45 days. Rs. 95.53 Lacs (Rs. 15,63 as al 31st March 2021) was recagnised as provision for expected credit
losses on trade receivables.

Trade receivables are presented nel of impairment in the Balance sheet

. Peifurinance ubllyallun and ieinaliing poifurtnanve vlllyation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporiing period and an explanation as
to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As at 31st March 2022, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of

goods/services.
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Due to COVID-19 situation, there have been several restrictions imposed by the various State Govemments across the country on the travel, goods movement and transporiation
considering public health and safety measures, which had some impact on the Company'’s supply chain during the year ending of March, 2022. However, the Company is engaged in
Pharmaceuticals business, being “essential services” there has been no suspension of operations and the Company has taken sieps for smooth functioning of ils operations during the
pandemic relating 1o COVID-19. The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business, including the impact on its customers, employees, vendors
etc. The management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting jud its and esti inter-alia, r bility of ivabl it for inventories,
based on the information available to date, both internal and extemal, while preparing the Company's financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2022.Further, the
Management believes that there may not be material impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Company, in the long-term. However, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncerlainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these financial statements.

The company has incurred a net loss (before other comprehensive income) of Rs. 664.39 Lacs during the current year and also reported accumulated losses of Rs. 2145.21 Lacs as at
31 March, 2022, consequently the Company have negative net worth of Rs 1144.21 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2022. However, the accompanying financial statements have been
propared on a going concem basis, as the management is confident on the company’s ability 1o continue as a going concem for a foreseeable future in view of the funds infused by way
of loan and letter of the financial support from the holding Company. The Company is now confident of meeting all its liabilities during next twelve months, Consequently these financial
statemenls have been prepared on a going concem basis and accordingly no adjustments have been considered necessary to the carrying values of the company’s assets and liabilities
at the year end.

The Parfiament of india has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020(the Code) which may impact the contribution by the Company towards provident fund, gratuity and ESI. The
Code have been published in Gazette of India however, the effective date has nol yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the code when it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective,if any.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's classification
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